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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of M/s. HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company™) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (induding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, induding material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to Us,
the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
) manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
- Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
) Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its losses, total

' comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our rcport. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial




Statements that give a true and falr view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the IND AS and other accounting principles generally accepted In India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records n accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of




accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
urcertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b)  In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except
for matter stated in paragraph h (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) rules, 2014.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.




On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under
section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph h(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

With respect to other matters to be included in the Audit Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. . The Company does not have any pending litigations which has an impact on
its financial statements.

il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(11) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and




(iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (if)
contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which includes test checks and according to the
information and explanations given to us, except for the instances mentioned below
the company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account,
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year all relevant transactions recorded in the software:

(a) The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for
any changes made using privileged/administrative access rights at the
database level till the close of 13/01/2024 to log any direct data changes for
the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account. (Refer
Note No 52 (j) to the notes to accounts of the financial statements.)

However, The Company is in the process of activation of audit trail features at the
database level.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of
audil trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software for
which the audit trail feature was operating,

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of Act, the company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The ministry of corporate
affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) of the Act which are
required to be commented upon by us.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 27.05.2024

UDIN: Q40994968 K Cum 6-loYY



"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 urder the heading ‘Repert on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’
of aur report to the members of M/S HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED (“Company”)
of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024;

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the

t‘}?mpnny and the books of accounts examined by us In the normal course of audit, we state
that: -

i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
Including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

E\B] The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
ssets.

(b) The company has a program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment
so to cover all the assets once every three years, which in our opinion is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. Since this was the second year of
entity’s operations, hence physical verification was not due as assets were installed after due
verification during the preceding financial year.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company does not own or possess any
immovable properties(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c)
of the order is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
assets during the year.

() No Proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company
as at 31st March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under.

ii) (a) The inventory; except goods-in-transit; in the custody of the company has been
physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of
such verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by the
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between
the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each

class of inventory.

(b) The company has not availed any working capital facility from any bank during the
year. Hence, this clause is not commented upon.

ili) The Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances In the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companles, firms,




Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties duting the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the order is not applicable.

iv) The company has not made any investments, given any loans or provided any guarantee
or security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

V) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, pursuant
to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii) In respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues

including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income-Tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate
authorities.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March
31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become
payable except the following.

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount in Lakhs | Period to
which it
relates

Punjab State | Profeesional tax 0.076 2023-24

Developmet Tax

b) There are no dues of the Statutory Dues as referred to in clause (a) on account of any

viii)

dispute

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 0f 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)
(c) of the Order is not applicable.




(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short term basls during the year. Hence
reporting under clause 3(ix) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(@) & () The Company does not have any subsidlary, assoclate, or joint venture and
accordingly the reporting under clause 3 (ix) (e) and () of the Order is not applicable.

X) (1) The company has not raised moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence the reporting under
clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) and hence the reporting under clause 3(x) (b) of the Order Is not

applicable.

xi) (a) Considering the principle of materiality outlined in the standards on auditing, no
fraud by the Company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the

year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

xii) The Company is nota Nidhi Company and hence the reporting under the clause 3 (xii)
(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) In our opinion, the company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to the applicable transaction with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements
as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of
the Companies Act 2013. Hence, the reporting under clause 3(xiv)(a)and (b) is not
applicable,

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected to Its directors and hence the provisions of the section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

(xvi) (a) & (b) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a)
&(b) of the Order is not applicable.




(¢) The company 18 not a Core Investment Gompany (G1C) m8 dofined I the regulations
mide by tie Reserve Banlk of India, Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvl) (¢) of the

Order ls not applicable.

() 'the Group does not have any CIG, Accordingly, reporting under clnuge 3(xv1) (d)
ofthe Order fs not applicable,

(Xv11) The Company has Incurred cosh loases of s, 205,67 lakha In the current financlal

year and Re, 101,60 lakha in the (mmediately preceding financlal year,

(XvII) There has been no resignation of the statutory ouditors of the company during the

yoar, Hence, this clause Is not commented upon.

(XIX)On the bagls of the fnanclal ratlos, agelng and expected dates of reallzation of

financlal nssets and payment of Ananclal labllities, other Information accompanying
the financlal statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plang and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attentlon, which causes us to belleve that any material
uncertalnty exlsts as on the date of the audit report that company s not capable of
meeting Its liabllitles existing at the date of balance shoet as and when they fall due
within a perlod of one year from the balance sheet date, We however, state that this Is
not an assurance as to the future viabllity of the company. We further state that our
reporting Is based on the facts up to the date of the audIt report and we neither glve
any guarantee nor any assurance that all [labllitles falling due within a perlod of one
year from the balance sheet, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall

due,

The provislons of section 135 of the Companles Act are not applicable to the company
for the year under conslderation, Hence, the reposting under clause 3 (xx) (a) to (b) of
the Order Is not commented upon.

red Accountants

-
o~ -

Place: Ludhlana

M. No.: 099496 Date: 27.05.2024
UDIN: 34 eqqYqb BRCOME oMY




Annexure B" to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone
Financial Statements of HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report onthe Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 ol
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HYM DRIVE
SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company lor the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criterta established
by the Company considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
“Institute of Chartered Accountants of India". These responsibilities include thes design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct ol its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection ol frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAlLand deemed to be prescribed

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of

internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of

the internal financial controls system over [inancial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over (inancial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financtal reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ol
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for ouraudit op he
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting, $>




Mcaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

A company's Internal financlal control over financial reporting Is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabllity of financlal reporting and the
preparation of financlal statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financlal
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the malntenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financlal statements In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Ludhiana
0.: 099496 Date: 27.05.2024
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HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED . ’
CIN: U35999pPB2022PTC055274
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31'2024

(All amounts in € Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

s As at As at .
+ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,019 21 1,583.54
Capital-Work-in-Progress 4 256.48 -
Right of use Assets 5 453,01 467.52
Intangible Assets 6 229.32 103.06
Intangible assets under development 4a 69.82 -
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 41.20 32.53
Other Non-Current Assets 8 21.44 341.26
Sub-Total (Non-Current Assets) 3,090.48 2,527.91
Current Assets
__ Inventories ) 9 124.83 5844
Financlal Assets N ' I -
_() Trade Receivables 10 27.91 0.92
() Cashand C‘ash_EﬂlvalenE - 1 | 3458 107.33
() Other Bank Balances - 12 - ~ 502.18
Other Current Assets S ) 13 331.05 176.55
Sub-Total (Current Assets) 518.37 845.42
Total Assets 3,608.85 3,373.33
Equity and Liabilitles
Equity 7' g -
Equity Share Capital o 7 14 | 320000 = 318219
Other Equity 15 | (438.65)| (106.64)
Sub-Total (Equity) 2,761.35 3,075.55
Liabllities -
__Non-Current Liabilities ) - -
Long Term Provisions - - 16 27.49 18.71
Sub-Total (Non-Current Liabilities) i 27.49 18.71
___ Current Uabllities - - -
___Financial Uabilities B I
() Borrowings , _ 17 | 64600 :
(W) Trade Payables R . ~ ,
a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises - 8 |- 053 | 0.0
_ b) Total Outstanding dues Other than Micro and Small Eniterprises Sl 38.04 3028
(Il Others , 19 12938 21441
___ Other Current Liabilitles ' 4.83 6.05
Short Term Provisions . | 067 | 23.94
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 0.56 3.53
Sub-Total (Current Liabilities) 820.01 279.07
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,608.85 3,373.33

Summary of Material accounting policies, accounting Judgements, estimates and assumptions (Notes 1 to 52)
The accompanying notes referred to above form an Integral part of the standalone financial statements

For HYM Drive Systems Privat

R

Abhishek Munjal
Director
DIN-05355274 DIN-02990732
/ / g
ena Prerna Joshi
CFO Company Secretary
PAN-AONPS7722) A52550

Place: Ludhlana

Date: ,;70579/{



HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
CN: Uaseoapaz2pTCOs AN

STATENUNT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR TR YUAR ENDED MARCH 31'2024

Yeor ended
Mawh 3), 2024

All memounts In € Lakh's unless stated othenwhe

Year endled
Mareh 31, 2021

M REVERUES:
Reaeiune ham Operations ) 0 2% 1.6
M2her I ome M in 2151
) Total Revenues i) 92.90 2.4
) EXPUNses:
Cont of Materiaty Coasumed 24 ae 179
Purchares of pack-in-trade 26 087 169
Changes iy laventories of Finlvhed Goods and Wark-in Mogresy b} (163 @on
Emplovee Benefits Dpenses 28 12078 8027
Finance Costs 20 LD 0.56
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses IR4,6 12302 11.6%
Othet Expenses 0 BR 82 46.42
() Toral Expenses (i) 421,68 162.39
(R1) Profit Before Tax (1) (227.69) (102.25)
(V) Tax Expenses:
' Qurreat Tax 093 5.92
__ ProvisiontCredit) for Deferred Tax (8.64) (32.53)
D) Tax redeted to Previous Years (592 :
(V) Profit from Continued Cperations (HI-V) (314.07), (106.64)
(V1) Other Comarehensive Income 31
items that will not be reclassitied to Profit & Loss
_[) Re-measarement (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans - 0.1§
- (1) Taxon () above , {0.03) s
. Total Other Comprehensive Income (Vi) B ARl .
& (Vi) Total Comprehensive tncome for the Period (VaVi) (314.20) (106.64)|
. (V&) Earnings Per Equity Shares 32 _ g : s
. Basic (in ) {0.98) {039)
. Dilsted {in X) {0.98) (0.34)
Semmary of Materlal accounting policies, accounting Judgements, estimates and assumptions (Notes 1 to 52)
The accompanying nates referred to above form an Integral part of the standalone financlal statements
For HYM Drive Systems Pri d
&
Abhishek Munjal
Directo
DIN:05355274 02990732
V%4
< Nedrd] Saxena Prerna Joshi
CFO Company Secretary
Place: Ludhlana PAN-AONPS7722) AS2550

Date: 2.7/ 057’§ 4




HYM DRivE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31'2024

(All amounts in X Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Year ended
March 31,2024

Year ended
March 31,2023

() Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (327 69) (133 25)
Profit Before Tax (327.69) (133.25)]
Adjustments for Non-Cash items -
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 122.02 3165
Defined Benefit Plans Charges to OCI (0.16) ’
Finance Cost 8.39 0.56
Interest Income (3.71) (2351)
Operating profit before working capital adjustments (201.15) (124.55)
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes -
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 319.81 (341.26)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (26.99) (0.92)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Receivables (154.50) (176 55)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (66.38) (58.44)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 7.42 3114
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables and Provisions (103.71) 266 64
_Cash generated ffpj\ operations (225.49) (403.95)
Taxes(Paid)/Received (Net of TDS&TCS) 4.98 (5.92)
| Net cash flow from Operating Activities (1) (220.51) (409.86)
(1) Investing Activities - ) |
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible (995.74) (2,185.77)
Interest received 371 2351
Net cash flow from Investing Activities (i) (992.03) (2,162.26)
(IM) _Financing Activities » -
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital - 3,182.19
____ Proceeds/(Repayment) from Short-term Borrowings(Net) . 646,00 -
interest and Financial Charges (8-39) (0.56)
Net cash flow from Financing Activities (1) 637.61 3,181.63
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+41+11) (574.92) 609.51
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at Beginning of the Year (A) - 609.51 -
Cash and cash equivalents as at the End of the Year (B) 3458 609 51
Net increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (B-A) (574.92) 609.51

Summary of Material accounting policies, accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (Notes 1 to 52)
Theyccompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
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L. Corporate Information

HYM Drive Systems Private Limited (“the Company”) is a company duly established and vatidly
existing under the flaws of India having Corporate Identification Number
U35999PB2022PTC055274 as subsidiary of Hero Moters Limited. The Company was
incorporated on February 18, 2022, The Registered Office of the Company Is situated at Hero
Nagar G. T, Road Ludhiana, Punjab-141003. The nature of business of the Company Is to
manufacture Hub Motors;

The standalone Ind AS financial statements were approved for Issue In accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 27** April 2024

2. Material Accounting Policles:
2.1  Basls of Preparation and presentation

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indlan Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Divislon II of Schedule III to the Companles Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

Accounting polides have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revislon to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR and all values are
rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise Indicated.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements provide comparative information in respect of
the previous yean

Basis of measurement

The standalone Ind AS finandal statements have been prepared on historical cost basis,
except for the following assets and llabilities which have been measured at fair value as

required under relevant Ind AS.

- Certaln finandal assets and llabilities are measured at fair value (Refer accounting
policy regarding financlal Instruments in Note 2.21n.)

- Defined benefit plans- plan assets are measured at falr value

2.2 Summary of Material accounting policles
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and llabilitles in the balance sheet based on
current/non-current dassification. An asset Is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be reallsed or Intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle

- Held for primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be reallsed within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting perlod

All other assets are dassified as non-current. A llabllity Is current when:
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s It Is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It Is held for primarily for the purpose of trading

= It Is due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There Is no unconditional right to defer the settdement of llability for at least twelve
after the reporting period

All other liabllities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non- current assets and llabllities.

The operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation In cash and cash equlvalents. The Company has |dentified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

b. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment Is stated at cost of acquisition or construction which indudes
capitalised finance costs less accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated Iimpalrment
loss, Iif any.

Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cast of bringing the item to Its working condition for its intended use. The cost
of a self-constructed Item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the Item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which It is located, if the recognition criteria is met. If significant
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Recognition criteria

- The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if and only
if,

a) Itis probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the item will flow to the
entity, and
b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their
intended use at the reporting date. Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding
at each Balance sheet date, are shown under other non-current assets.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an Item of property, plant and equipment is recognised In
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capltalised only If it Is probable that the future economic
benefits assoclated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and its cost can be
measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of PPE less their estimated residual values over
thelr estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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C.

Depreclation on Items of PPE Is provided as per rates corresponding to the useful life
specified In Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 read with related amendments. The
estimated useful llves of Items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparalive periods are as follows:

Depreclation Is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line basis on the estimated
useful life prescribed under Schedule II to Companles Act, 2013 with the following
exception:
- Leasehold land & Leasehold Improvement has been amortised over the lease term.
- Freehold Land Is not depreciated.

Useful life consldered for calculation for various assets class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Building 30-60 years
Plant & Machinery 08 to 30 years
Furniture & Fixture 3 to 10 years
Office Equipment’s 3 to 5 years
Computer 3 to 6 years

* The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and
management estimate, depreclates tools Included In plant and equipment over estimated
useful lives of 8 and 30 years which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companles Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are reallstic and reflect falr approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposal) Is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the
date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment Is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from Its use and disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset Is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets
Acquired Intangible

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured Initially at cost. Cost of
an item of Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, Including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for Its Intended use. After
initial recognition, an Intangible asset Is carried at its cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impalrment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure Is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which It relates. All other expenditure is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss as Incurred.
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Amortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and these are assessed
for iImpalrment whenever there Is an Indication that the Intangible asset may be impalred.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes In the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied In the asset are considered to modify the amortisation perlod or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes In accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on Intangible assets with finite lives Is recognised In the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. The
amortisation method, residual value and the useful lives of Intangible assets are reviewed
annually and adjusted as necessary.

fpedalized software are amortized over a period of 3 years or license period whichever Is
aten

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from Its use and disposal.

d. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing
for obsolescence, wherever considered necessary. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads incurred
in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. The cost of various
components of inventory is determined as follows;-

Raw Material The cost of raw materials &components, stores & spares, and
other traded items includes duties, taxes net of
recoverable taxes, wherever applicable, and other expenses
incurred to bring the inventories to their present
location and condition .The cost is arrived on the basis
of weighted moving average method.

¥ork In Progress The cost of work in progress comprises of material cost
plus appropriate share of allocable overheads.

Finished Goods The cost of finished goods Includes material cost plus
appropriate share of overheads. Finished Goods are
Valued at Cost or NRV whichever is lower.

Traded Goods The cost of land traded items is valued at cost on the
basis of specific identification method

Scrap Net realisable value.
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The cost of inventories includes expenditure Incurred In acquiring the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs Incurred In bringing them to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-
progress |s determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

Raw materlals and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are
not written down below cost except In cases where material prices have declined anditis
estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basls.
e. Retirement and other employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basls and are
expensed as the related service Is provided. A llability Is recognised for the amount
expected to be pald e.g., salaries and wages and bonus etc., if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan Is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
employee provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (‘ESI") to Government
administered scheme which Is a defined contribution plan. The Company‘s contribution is
recognised as an expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan Is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The administration of the gratuity scheme has
been entrusted to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (‘LIC'). The Company's net
obligation in respect of gratulty Is calculated separately by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned In the current and prior perlods, discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation Is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit llabllity l.e. Gratulty, which comprise actuarial
galns and losses are recognised In Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company
determines the net Interest expense (Income) on the net defined benefit liability for the
perlod by applylng the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual perlod to the then- net defined benefit liability, taking into account
any changes In the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions




m DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
— L"L“m_l}\rt of the standalone finandial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or 'past service gain’) or the gain
or Joss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the settement of a defined benefit plan when
the settiement occurs.

c) Short term and other long term employee benefits :

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange of services rendered by employees are recognised during the period when the
employee renders the services. These benefits incude salaries, wages, performance
incentives and compensated absences.

The liability in respect of accumulated compensated absences is provided for on the basis
of actuarial valuation carried out at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year
in which they occur.

d) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the time of money Is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount
is recognised as finance cost. Expected future losses are not provided for.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amountis the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money Is material).

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

. by an established pattern of past practice, published polides or a sufficdently spedfic
current statement, the entity has Indicated to other parties that it will accept certain

responsibilities; and
. as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other

parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certaln that reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be

measured reliably.
f. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a
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Present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated rellably, Contingent llabllities do not
warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources Is remote.

_C°"""98nt assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise
to the possibllity of an Inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are
recognised when the reallsation of Income Is virtually certain, then the related asset Is not
a contingent asset and Its recognition Is appropriate.

A contingent asset Is disclosed where an Inflow of economic benefits Is probable,

9. Commitments

Commitments Include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) Issued to partles
for completion of assets. Provislons, contingent llabllitles, contingent assets and
commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

h. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers Is recognised when the control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the conslderation to
which the Company expects to be entitied In exchange for those goods or services. The
Company has generally concluded that It Is the principal In Its revenue arrangement
because It typically controls goods or services before transferring them to the customers.
?evenue from sale of goods Is recognised based on a 5-Step Methodology which Is as
ollows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obllgation In contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfles a performance obligation

Revenue |Is measured based on transaction price, which Is the falr value of the
conslderation recelved or recelvable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added tax.
Transaction price Is recognised based on the price spedified In the contract, net of the
estimated sales Incentives/ discounts. Also, In determining the transaction price for the
sale of products, the Company considers the effects of varlable consideration, the existence
of significant financing components, noncash conslderation, and conslderation payable to

the customer (If any).

As per Ind AS 115, the Company determines whether there Is a significant financing
component In Its contracts, However, the Company has decided to use practical expedient
provided in Ind AS 115 and not to adjust the promised amount of conslderation for the
effects of a significant financing components In the contracts, where the Company expects,
at contract Inception that the perlod of completion of contract terms are one year or less.
Therefore, for short-term advances, the company does not account for a financing
component. No long-term advances from customers are generally received by the

Company.
Sales-related warranties assoclated with goods cannot be purchased separately and they

serve as an assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.
Accordingly, the Company accounts for warrantles In accordance with Ind AS 37.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography.

Sale of services
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The Company recognises revenue from these contracts on satisfaction of performance
obligation towards rendering of such services over time, as and when the services are
rendered In accordance with the specific terms of contracts with customers, The Company’s
performance obligation Is limited to providing resources required for these services

Export benefits

Export Incentive entitiements are recognised as Income when the right to receive credit as
per the terms of the scheme Is established In respect of the exports made, and where
there Is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export
proceeds.

Disaggregated revenue information

The Company presents disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for the
year ended 31 March, 2024 by type of goods and services and timing of revenue
recognition, The Company belleves that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected by Industry,

market and other economic factors .
Contract balances

Trade Receivable

A recelvable Is recognised If an amount of consideration that Is unconditional (I.e., only the

passage of time Is required before payment of the consideration Is due). Refer to

accounting polices of financlal assets In section of Financlal Instruments - Initial
= recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liabllity Is recognised If a payment Is recelved or a payment Is due (whichever
Is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services.
Contract llabllities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract (l.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Recognition of interest income or expense

Interest Income or expense Is accrued on a time basls and recognised using the effective
Interest method.

The ‘effective Interest rate’ Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or recelpts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrylng amount of the financlal asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating Interest Income and expense, the effective Interest rate Is applied to the
gross carrylng amount of the asset (when the asset Is not credit-impaired) or to the
amortised cost of the liabllity,. However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impalred subsequent to Initial recognition, Interest income Is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset Is no longer
credit-impalred, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basls.
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Dividend incame ts recognized when the right to recelve payment is established.

Claims recelvables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company
Is reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

j» Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are Interest and other costs incurred by the Company In connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction
of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for thelr
Intended use are capltalised as a part of cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense {n the period in which they are Incurred. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.
k. Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Itis recognised In Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business comblnation or an item recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive (ncome.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recelvable on the taxable Income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recelvable In respect of previcus
years. Current Income tax assets and liabllities are measured at the amount expected to
be pald or recelved after considering the uncertainty, If any, related to income taxes. Itis
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only If there Is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and It is Intended to realise the asset and settle

the llabllity on a net basls or simultaneously.

Current Income tax relating to Items recognised outslde profit or loss Is recognised outside
profit or loss (either In other comprehensive Income (OCI) or In equity). Current tax (tems
are recognised in correlation to the underlylng transaction either in OCI or directly In
equity. Management perlodically evaluates positions taken In the tax returns with respect
to situations In which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether It Is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertaln tax treatment. The
Company shall reflect the effect of uncertalnty for each uncertaln tax treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts
better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is provided using the llabllity method on temporary differences between the
carrylng amounts of the assets and liabllities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax llabllities are recognised for all temporary differences, except when the
deferred tax llability arises from the Initial recognition of goodwlll or an asset or liabllity In
a transaction that Is not a business combination and, at the ime of the transaction, affects
nelther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and In respect of taxable temporary
differences assoclated with Investments In subsldiaries, associates and Interests In joint
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ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that It is probable that taxable profit will be avallable against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred Lox asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the Initial recognition of an asset or Hability In
a transaction that Is not a business combination and, at the ime of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and In respect of deductible
temporary differences assoclated with Investments In subsidiaries, assoclates and Interests
In jont ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that It Is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse In the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be avallable against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrylng amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that It Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wiil be avallable to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that It has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverabllity of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same
forecast assumptions used elsewhere In the financlal statements and In other management
reports.

Deferred tax assets and |labllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
In the year when the asset Is realised or the liabllity Is settled, based on tax rates (and tax

. laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to Items recognised outslde profit or loss Is recognised outside profit
* or loss (elther In other comprehensive Income or In equity). Deferred tax (tems are
. recognised (n correlation to the underlying transaction elther In OCI or directly In equity.
¢ The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax llabilities If and only If It has a

legaily enforceable right to set off current tax labllities and assets and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax llablliles relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation
authorities,

Sales/value added taxes/GST pald on acquisition of assets or on Incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST
pald, except:

- When the tax Incurred on a purchase of assats or services Is not recoverable from
tha taxation authority, In which case, the tax pald Is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expanse Item, as applicable

- When recelvables and payables are stated with the amount of tax Included

The net amount of tax recoverable fram, or payable to, the taxation authority Is Included
as part of recelvables or payables In the balance sheet,

|. Leasas

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether It qualifies as lease as
defined under Ind AS 116!

Company as a lessee
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The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and bulldings. The
Company assesses whether a contract contalns a lease, at Inception of a contract. A
contract Is, or contains, a lease If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identifled asset, the Company assesses
whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an Identifled asset (i) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iil) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

"

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which itis a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. "

Lease arrangements may Include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities may indude these options when it
is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liablity adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depredation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in drcumstances
Indicate that thelr carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the falr value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) Is determined on an individual asset basls unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

The lease liability Is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the Incremental borrowing rates pertalning to
the company. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset If the Company changes Its assessment If whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented In the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flow activities.

m. Financial instruments

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a finandial asset of one entity and
a financlal liabllity or equity Instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All finandal assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus, In the case of financial assets
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not recorded at falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to

the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financlal assets that require

dellvery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, l.e., the date that the

Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financlal assets are classified In four categorles:

. Debt Instruments at amortised cost

. Debt Instruments at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

. Debt Instruments, derivatives and equity Instruments at falr value through profit or
loss (FVPL)

& Equity Instruments measured at falr value through other comprehensive Income

(FVOCI)
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt Instrument’ Is measured at the amortised cost If the asset Is held within a business
model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After Initial measurement, such financlal assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or recelpts through the expected
life of the financlal instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the
amortised cost of the financlal llability, Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation Is Included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The losses arlsing from Impalrment are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at FVOCI

A ‘debt Instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financlal assets, and the
asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at falr value. Fair value movements are recognised In the other
comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative galn or loss
previously recognised In OCI Is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt Instrument is reported as Interest income using the EIR

method.
Debt instrument at FVPL

FVPL Is a residual category for debt Instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criterla for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, Is classified as at
FVPL. In addition, at Initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably elect to designate a
debt Instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL.
However, such adoption Is allowed only If doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt Instruments Included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Equity Investments

All equity Investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at falr value. For all other
equity Instruments, the Company may make an Irrevocable adoption to present In other
comprehensive Income subsequent changes In the fair value. The Company makes such

. adoption on an Instrument-by-Instrument basis. The classification Is made on Initial
recognition and Is Irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity Instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the Instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised In the OCI. There Is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of Investment., However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.

Equity instruments Included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financlal assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether
financlal assets carrled at amortised cost are credit- Impaired. A financial asset Is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have detrimental Impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financlal assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset Is credit-Impalred Includes the following observable data:
S significant financlal difficulty of the borrower or Issuer;
= the breach of contract such as a default or belng past due for 90 days or more;
= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company
C would not consider otherwise;
- It Is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation; or
* = the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

= Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial Instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognltion.

Loss allowances for trade recelvables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period If the expected life of the Instrument Is less than 12 months). In all cases, the
maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses Is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company Is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credlt risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since Initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable Information that Is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative Information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experlence and informed credit assessment
and Including forward looking Information.
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Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probabllity-welghted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (l.e. difference between the cash
flow due to the Company In accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the
Company expects to recelve).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses In the balance sheet Loss allowance
for financlal assets measured at the amortised cost Is deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Wrilte-off

The gross carrying amount of a finandial asset Is written off (either partially or In full) to
the extent that there Is no realistic prospect of recovery. This Is generally the case when
the Company determines that the debtors do not have assets or sources of Income that
could generate sufficlent cash flows to repay the amount subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities In order
to comply with the Company’s procedure for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financlal assets

A finandal asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financlal asset or part of a group of

similar financlal assets) Is primarlly derecognised (l.e, removed from the Company’s

balance sheet) when:

¥ The rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have explired, or

- The Company has transferred Its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the recelved cash flows In full without material delay
to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred Its rights to recelve cash flows from an asset or has
entered Into a pass-through arrangement, It evaluates If and to what extent It has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing Involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the assoclated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retalned.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financlal liabllities are classifled, at [nitial recognition, as financial liabllities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

All financlal liabllities are recognised initially at fair value and, In the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transactlon costs.

e ———
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The Company’s financial liabllities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowIngs
Including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
Instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, finandal llabilitles are classified in two
Categories:

. Finandal liabllities at fair value through profit or loss {FVPL)

. Finandal liabllitles at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

A finandal liabliity 1s classified as at FVPL If It Is dassified as held-for-trading, or itisa
derivative or It is designated as such on initial recognition. Finandal liabllities at FVPL are
measured at fair value and net galns and losses, Including any interest expense, are
recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other finandal liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interest method. Interest expense and forelgn exchange gains and losses are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised In
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial llability Is derecognised when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financlal liabitity Is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modifled, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts s recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses various types of derivative financial instruments to hedge its currency
and Interest risk etc. Such derivative financial instruments are initiafly recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered Into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positive and as finandal liabllities when the fair value Is negative.

Offsetting

Financial assets and finandal liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and It intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liablility simultaneousty.

n. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets other than Inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there Is indication of any impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount Is estimated. For
impairment testing, assets that do not generate Independent cash flows are grouped
together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company
of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely Independent of the cash Inflows of
other assets or CGUs.
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The recoverable amount of as CGU (or an Indlvidual asset) Is the higher of Its value In use
and fair value less cost to sell. Value In use Is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impalrment loss Is recognised whenever the carrylng amount of an asset or Its cash
generating unit exceeds Its recoverable amount. Impalrment losses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment foss Is reversed If there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal Is made only
to the extent that the asset’s carrylng amount does not exceed the carrylng amount that
would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, If no Impairment loss

had been recognised.
0. Operating Segments

An operating segment Is a component of the Company that engages In business activities
from which |t may earn revenues and Incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which
discrete financial information Is avallable. All operating segments’ operating results are
reviewed regularly by the Company‘s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make
dedslons about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

p. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash In hand, demand deposits with banks, other
short term highly liquid Investments with orlginal maturities of three months or less, that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant

E risk of changes in value.

q. Cash flow statement

. Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax Is adjusted for
) the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash recelpts or payments and item of Income or expenses assoclated with
investing or finandng cash flows. Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash
flows Into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities

is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:
a) changes during the period In operating recelvables and payables transactions of a

non-cash nature;

b) non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains

and losses; and
¢) all other items for which the cash effects are Investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
exclude items which are not avallable for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

r. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) Is computed by dividing the net profit or loss (exduding
OCI) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to
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expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the welghted average
number of shares outstanding during the pertod as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations, Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the perlod, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.”

s. Foreign Currency Transaction and translations

The functional currency and presentation currency of the company Is Indian Rupee.
Functional currency of the Company and forelgn operations has been determined based
on the primary economic environment In which the Company and its foreign operations
operate considering the currency In which funds are generated, spent and retatned.

Initial recognition

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted at the exchange rates
prevalling on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fatr value that
are denominated in forelgn currencles are restated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the falr value was determined.

Measurement of forelgn currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

Monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies at the year-end are restated at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet. Non-monetary items

denominated in foreign currencies are carried at historical cost.
Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised In profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on forelgn currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included In the cost of
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those forelgn

currency borrowings.

t. Fair value measurement

A number of the Company’s accounting policles and disclosures require measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an
established control framewark with respect to measurement of falr values. This Includes
the top management divislon which Is responsible for overseelng all significant falr value
measurements, Including Level 3 fair values. The top management division regularly
reviews significant unobservable Inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, Is used to measure fair values, then the top management divislon assesses
the evidence obtalned from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations
meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hlerarchy (n which the
valuations should be classlfied.

Falr values are categorised Into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs

used In the valuation technlques as follows:
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for ldentical assets and

liabilltles.
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. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included In Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (l.e. as prices) or indirectly (l.e. derived from

prices)
= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement Is
categorised In its entirely In the same level of the falr value hierarchy as the lowest level

input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made In measuring fair values used in
preparing these standalone financial statements is included in the respective notes.

u. Research & development costs

Research and development costs that are (n nature of tangible assets and are expected to
generate probable future economic benefits are capitalised as tangible assets. Revenue
expenditure on research and development is charged to the statement of profit and loss

in the year In which it is Incurred.

v. Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary
activities are of such size, nature or Incldence that thelr disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the Company for the period, the nature and amount of such material
items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2024 to amend the following Ind AS which are

effective for annual periods beglnning on or after 1 April 2024. The Company applied for
the first-time these amendments.

i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments dlarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes
in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities
use measurement techniques and Inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no Impact on the Company’s stand alone financial statements.

ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments alm to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more

useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose thelir ‘significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose thelr ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
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guldance on how entities apply the concept of materlality in making dedsions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an Impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policles,
but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items In the Company’s
financial statements.

i) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
- Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12,
so that It no longer applles to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on 2 net basis. As a result
of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset In
relation to its lease llabilities and a deferred tax liability In relation to its right-of-use assets.
Since, these balances quallfy for offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind
AS 12 there Is no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening
retalned earnings as at 1 April 2022,

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind
AS like Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind
AS 34,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result In the outcomes requiring a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities In future periods. Therefore, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised In the period In which the estimate Is revised if the
revislon affects only that period, or In the period of the revision and future periods If the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

In the financial statements:
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount
and timing of revenue from contracts with customers, such as Identifying performance
obligations in a bundled sales transactions, wherein, the Company sell goods,
transportation and warranty services bundled together with sales of goods. The Company
allocated the portion of the transaction price to goods basls on its relative standalone

prices.
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Expected credit losses on financlal assets

The impalrment provisions of financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impalrment calculation, based on the
Company'’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, Including expectations of future events that may have a finandal Impact on the
Company and that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Determining lease term

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease If it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any perlods covered by an option to terminate the lease, If it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised. The Company has some property lease arrangements with Its
holding company that include option to terminate the contract by either party at any time
by giving advance notice. The Company applied judgment in evaluating whether it Is
reasonably certain for both the parties to terminate the property lease contract before the
lease term. It considered all the factors that create economic incentive for the parties to
continue with lease or terminate Including alternatives avallable for the office lease, usé
of underlying property, leasehold improvements made and accordingly determined lease

term.

The lease term is reassessed If an option Is actually exercised (or not exerdsed) or the
Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable
certainty is only revised If a significant event or a significant change In drcumstances
occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have 2 significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based Its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing drcumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change or
dreumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected In
the assumptions when they occur.

Useful life of assets of (Property, plant and equipment)

The charge In respect of periodic depreciation Is derived after determining an estimate of
an asset’s expected useful life and the expected resldual value at the end of Its life. The
useful lives and resldual values of Company's assets are determined by management at
the time the asset Is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Impalrment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds Its
recoverable amount, which Is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and Its value
in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation Is based on available data from
binding sales transactlons, conducted at arm’s length, for simllar assets or observable
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market prices less Incremental costs for disposing of the assel. The value In use calculation
s based on a DCF model. It do not Include restructuring activities that the Company is not
yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the assel's
performance of the CGU belng tested, The recoverable amount Is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-Inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relavant to property, plant
and equipment recegnised by the Company.

Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business In relation to claims
against the Company, Including legal and other claims. By virtue of thelr nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fall
to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potentlal quantum, of contingencies
Inherently Involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates

regarding the outcome of future events.
Recoverabllity of deferred taxes

In assessing the recoverabllity of deferred tax assets, management considers whether It
is probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the losses can be utilised.
The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the perlods in which the temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the projected future taxable Income and tax planning strategles in
making this assessment.

Estimation of Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utllised. In
assessing the prabability the Company conslders whether the entity has sufficlent taxable
temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised before they expire. Significant management judgement Is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategles.
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HYM DRIVC syt Mms PRIVATL LIMITCD

NOTLS YO Tir FINANCIAL STATLMENTS FOR THC YEAR ENDED MARCH 11,2024

(A1 3mvzants in ® Labhy 5 unlets stated ctherwiis)

¢f 44, -
Deferred Tax Assety
(A) Deforreg T3y Asnoty o s
o 41.20 3253 )

Note - 8 Other Non-Currant Assets

Particulars

Unsecured, Considered Good
(A) Capitai Advances

As ot
Mareh 31,2024

Aot
March 31,2023

139 94

| (B) Prepaid Expenses 064 128
Total 2144 341.26 |

Note - 9 Inventories
{Valued at lower of Cost or Net Reslizable Value)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

{A)  Finished Goods
-Multi Speed Motor 095 063
-Traded Cycle 050 025
_ cTotal ___7 1.44 0.89
1B) Work-in-Progress 219 112
() Raw Materialy 118 56 56.43
{D) Stores & Spares 263 000
Total 124.83 58.44

Note - 10 Current Financial Assets : Trode Recelvables

Particulars

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

() Unsecured, Considered Good -
= _Related Parties ) j N ) 2791 0.92
- Others B :
Total 2791 0.92

Note - 11 Current Financial Assets : Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

_(A) Balance with Banks
- InCurrentAccoumts

{B) Cash In hand

As at
March 31,2024

3458

As at
March 31,2023

107.33

Total

34.58

107.23

Note - 12 Current Financlal Assets : Other Bank Balances

Particulars

Balance with Banks
- In Fixed Deposit Accounts®

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

502 18

Total T T

502.18

Note - 13 Other Current Assets

Particulars

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

(A) AdvancetoVendors 1132 470

(B) Prepaid Expenses 205 184

© I;dire_t_:t Tax Recoverable )

- GST Recoverable 31768 170.00
Total 331.05 176.55




HYM DRivE SYSTEMS PRIVATL LIMITED
NOTYLS 1O 1M FINANCIAL STATEMINTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 11,2024

(All arnounts in ¥ Lakh'y ynlesd statad otherwisd)

Authorired Share Capital
12,000,000 Equity Shares € 10/ each e o
(Previous Year 32,000,000 Equity Shares of ®10/ each)
Total 3,200.00 3,200.00
lisued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity Share Capital
32,000,000 Equity Shares of €10/ each (Previous Year 32,000,000 Equity Shares of ¢ i e
| 10/ each)

Total 3,200.00 3,182.19

Additional Information

(A)  Reconclliation of Equity Share Capital (In Numbers)

As at As at
March 11,2024 March 31,2023
3,20,00,000 3,20,00,000

Particulars

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add  Shares Issued during the year - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,20,00,000 3000000

{B)  List of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Share Capltal of the company (in numbers)

S.No.|Name of Shareholders No of Shares % No of Shares %
() |Hero Motors Limited ) ”x o 28799995  90% | 28799935  90%
()} _{Yamaha Motor Co. Ltd. 3200000  10% | 3200000  10%

* Remaining 5 shares are held by S Individuals as nominees of Hero Motors Limited

(C) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:

As at As at % Change during
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 the Year
Name of Promoter Noof Shares % |NoofShares %

Particulars

{)__[Hero Motors Umited 28799995 90% | 28799955 90%
| [
Note - 15 Other Equity

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Particulars

l)_GeneralReserve R R
Balance as at the beginning of the year e
Additions/{Utilized) during the year - .
Balance as at the end of the year - -
(W) RetainedEanings -
Balance as at the beginning of the year = B (106.64) s
Additions/{Losses) during the year (314.07) (106 54)
Balance as at the end of the year (420.71) (106.64)
() _Retained Earnings -1l )
_ Balance as at the beginning of the year ) B B i -
Additions/{Losses) during the year (17 81)
Balance as at the end of the year (17.81) -
(V) Other Comprehensive Income B )
_Balance as at the beginning of the year :
) Mdf‘t}onq(l.oises) during the year (0 13)
Balance a3 at the end of the year (0.13) -
Total (l+li+lil+1V) (438.65) (106.64)

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

») General Reserve :- The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the company
before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier
provisions of Companies Act,1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is
not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

b) Retalned Earnings :- Retained earnings are the profits that company has earned tlil date,less any
transfer o general reserve,dividends or other distributions paid to
shaceholders. Retained earnings Is a free reserve avallable to the company




HYM DRIVE SySTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO Tt FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts in € Lakh's unless stated otherwise



HYM DIy SYSTEMS PRIVATC UMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

W
(A amounts 0 @ Labh s unliss stated otherwisn)

Mt

Asat

Total

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Provision tor Cmployee Denafity
Gratuity e as
Leave [ncashmpnt s "1]
2749 1871

Note « 17 Currant Financial Uabllities - Borrowings

Particulars

) Unsocured - Classified At Amartised Cost
(A)_Loan fram Related Parties

Asat
March 31,2024

646 00

As at
March 31,2023

Particulars

Trade Payables - Classified at amortised cost

l_ Total 640.00 >
Nota - 18 Current Financlal Liabllites « Trade Payable
As at

As ol
March 31,2024

(A) Due 10 parties coverad under Micro & Small Enterprises 053 050
(B) Due to Parties other than MSME 2561 2736
|_(C) _Payable to Related Partios 1243 289

March 31,2023

S N

18.57

3114

Note - 19 Current Financlal Liabilities « Othors

Particulars

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

__ Other Current Financlal Uabllity - Classifled at amortised cost
(A} Interest accrued but not due 1293 :
B)_Employee’s Related Payable 1581 27.60
_(C)Payable to Related Parties 2977 17.20
|_(0) Creditors for capital goods 50.87 169 62
L T s e i v, 129.38 21441

Nate « 20 Other Current Uabilitles

Particulars

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

(A) Statutory Oues -
S L S 022 004
- _Income Tax (TDS) 228 469
ES), PF&Others 196 132
+ _Labour Welfare Fund Payablo 002
Professional Tax Payable 016
A 4.8

Nota < 21 Short Term Provisions

Particulars

_(A) Provision for employee benefits
Gratulty
Leave Encashment

As at
March 31,2024

025
041

As at
March 31,2023

2351
043

Total "o PRI

0.67

23.94

Particulars

Provision for Income Tax(Net)

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

A

kel

Total

0.56
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HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al amaounts m € Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Note - 23 Revenue from Operations

Particulars 202324 202223

(A) Sales of Product
Domestic 8856 078
Export 084
(B) Sales of Traded Goods
Domestic :
Export 0.83 476
(C) Sales of Service 002 -
Sub-Total (1) 90.25 5.55
Other Operating Revenue
(A)_Income from Export Incentives 008
Sub-Total (1) - 0.08
Total (Revenue from Operations) (i+1) 90.25 5.63
Particulars 2023-24
{A) Interest Income on Bank Deposits 361 19.07
(B) Others Interest {Inter Corporate Loan & Security) 0.10 444
Total 3.71 23.51

Particulars 2022-23

(A) _Inventory at the beginning of the year 56.43 =
(8) _Add: Purchases — . lasasl S8
s - o i e SOLST. | SRR 58,23
{C) _ Less: Inventory at the end of the year 118 56 5643
Total ( A+B-C) 83.02 1.79
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

[A)  Inventory at the beginning of the year B B 025 -
(B) _Add: Purchases. . . o8| 395
] X 1.06 : 3.95
{C)  Less: Inventory at the end of the year 050 025
Total (A+B-C) 0.57 3.69
Note - 27 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

(A) Openingstock ==~ I
- Finished Goods - 063
- TradedGoods 0.25
- Work-in-Progress 112
Sub-Total {A) 2.01 -
{8) ClosingStock -
- Finished Goods o 095 063
- Traded Goods - 050 025
Work-in-Progress 219 112
Sub-Total (B) 3.64 2.01
Tolal (A-B) (1.63) (2.01)

Note - 28 Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars
(A) Salaries, Wages and Allowances 91.72 7217
(B) Contribution to PF, ESI and other Funds 772 398
(C) Gratuity expense (Refer note 33) 713 065
(D) Compensated absences NSAL ¢ 5.15 055
(E) Staff Welfare Expenses QF/\OD 9.07 292

Total 120.78 80.27




HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amoonte in CLakh s unless wtated otharwiss)

Particulary 1023-24 02228
(A) Interest Exponses on .
term loans & working capital facilities H36
B) Finance Charges/Commission 003 056
Total 8.19 0,56

Note - 30 Other Expenses

Particulars 202)-24 2022:23

(A) Power & Fuet 1657 12]
(B) Packing materials 0.86
(C) Consumption OF Stores & Spares 7.46 065
(D) Payment to Auditors

- Statutory Audit 150 1.00

- Taxation Related Matter 2.00

_ - Others Matters 0.23 .

(E) 1T Expenses 235 039
(F) Insurance Expenses 143 032
{G) Professional and Legal Expenses 143 145
{H) Rates & Taxes ] 043 1118
(1) General Admin Charges 739 2190
() Repair & Mulnlonnnce 25.36 032
{K) Travelling Expenses 32 018
(L) _Freight Expenses 0.82 0.48
M) _Other Miscellaneous Expenses 17.47 733

Total 88.52 46.43

Note - 31 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars 2023-24 202223
(A)_Remeasurement impact for actuarial gain of loss 016 | N
(B) Tax on above (0.03)
Total 0.13 .

Note - 32 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The Company's earnings per share Is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholder's of the Company
Basic earnings per share Is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

Particulars

Earning attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

Calculation of Wel;_hlpd Average Number of Equity Shares

- Number of share at the beginning of the year

- Total equity shares outstanding at the end of the year

- Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding durlng the year

Baslc Earmngs Per Share (In !)
Diluted Earmnss Per Share (In !)
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (In %)

202324
(314.20)

320.00

(0 98)
(0.98)
10.00

2022-23

(0.33)
(033)
10.00




HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in % Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

() Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan Every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity
on departure at 15 days salary (fast drawn salary) for each completed years of service. The scheme is unfunded

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss and
amount recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in relation to re-measurement gain or loss

Statement of Profit and Loss
Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the employee cost

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current Service Cost 5.20 313
Net Interest Expense 193 .
Past Service Cost -
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 7.13 3.13
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 0.16
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 0.16 =
Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset/Liabllity

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 19.19 3577
Plan Liability 19.19 35.77
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 35.77 -
Current Service Cost 5.20 3.13
Interest Cost o - - - 193 .
Past Service Cost B A - _7_7 o ] ° )
Benefits Pald - - 2386 -
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligaton B 0.16 -
Acquistlons/ Business Combination/ Divesztitures 32.64
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 19.19 35.77

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars

Discount Rate
Increase in Compensation Cost

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

Gratuity Plan

Particulars
Assumptions

_D
0.50%
| Increase

Sensitivity level - T B
Impact on defined benefit obligation

31-Mar-24

Iscount rate
el i
© 0.50% decrease

0.50%
Increase

31-Mar-23
Future salary increases

0.50% decrease

Gratuity Plan

31-Mar-24

Particulars 31-Mar-23

Assumptions o Discountrate Future salary increases
. 50%
. E,50% 0.50% decrease ) s 0.50% decrease
Sensitivity level increase B _ increase |

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

Impact on defined benefit obligation




HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts in T Lokh's unless stoted othervise)

Demographic Assumption

1) Retirement Age (Years) 28 -

) Mortality rates inclusive of provision |100% of IALM  |100% of IALM
for disability ** (2012 - 14) =

Withdrawal Withdrawal

iii) Attrition at Ages Rate (%) Rate (%)

Up to 30 Years 3 -

From 31 10 44 yesrs 2 2

Above 44 years 1 -

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
Gratuity

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) o 026
Between 2 and 5 years - 10.89 3411
Between5and6years 00 B 019 009
Beyond 6years 3.26 2.30
Total 14.61 60.84
(i) Leave Encashment

Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the employee cost

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current Service Cost ) 3.96 238
Net Interest Expense R 063 -
Remeasurements ' B 0.55 -
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 5.15 2.38
Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset/Liability

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation - -
Plan Liability - -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation - , 687

Current Service Cost ) 39 238
Interest Cost 0.63 -
Acqulsh:_ioE/Bustness Eomb}natlon/Divestiture ' i ) 503
Benefits Paid N - (308 (054)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 7 0.55 s
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 8.96 6.87

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Discount Rate
Increase in Compensation Cost

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period




HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATCMINTS

(Al amounts in € Lakh's unfess stated otherwise)

Domographic Assum

4

tion
Particulars

A1-Mar-24 f11-Mar-23

I) Retirement Age (Years) 58 58

i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision |100 % of IALM 100 % of 1ALM

. for disabllity ** (2012 - 14) (2012- 14)
W) Ages Withdrawal Withdrawal
Rate (%) Rate (%)
Up to 30 Years 1 3
From 31 to 44 years 2 2
Above 44 years 1 1
Iv) Leave

Leave Avaliment Rate 5 5
Leave Lapse rate while In service NIl NIl
Leave Lapse rate on exit Nil NIl
Leave encashment Rate while In service 5 5

Note - 34 Leases
Operating Lease: Company as lessee
The Company has obtained 2 acres of land from Hero E-Cycles Private Limited for 33 years for It's Opertation by making one time
payment. Such land has been recognized as ROU In financlal Statements so as to amortize such land over the lease period as
provided in IND AS 116 Leases. Yearly Amortization Is recorded for Rs, 14.52 Lakhs

Note -35 Commitment and Contingancles

{f) Commitments
(o)
. Capital Commitments 32.36 186.01

.’ b) There is no contingenet llabllity standing as on 31.03.2024




HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U35999PB2022PTC055274

S

gnificant Accounting Palicles and explanatory notes to Standalone Financial Statements
Note - 36 Earning in Foreign Currency (Accrual Basis)

Particulars

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

FOB Value of Exports 167 478
Note-37 CiF Value of Import

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Raw Material 4501 2.88

Capital Goods 4897 B
Note - 38 Expenditure in Foreign Currency 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Foreign Travelling 460 0.28

Note -39 Consumption of imported and indigenous materials consumed

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23
Amt %age

Particulars

Imparted i
Indigenous 55.28 | 67% |341 | 98%
Total 8195 | 100%(3.48 | 100%

40 Borrowing cost of Rs. 4.57 lakhs (Previous Year 2022-23 is nil) is capitalised during the years.

41 In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than Property, Plant and Equipment and non current investments have a value
an realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the value at which they are stated in the foregoining
Balance Sheet.

42 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to make them
comparable,




HYM DIIVE 3Y5TEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOYES YO Tip 1iNANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al emoarty v € (abh g pwteds stoted afherwie)

10 wceosdance with the requnements of ind AS 108 Segment Reporting, the Company iy primanky engaged in s busness of high-qusbity 14 motors for £ ke
and has no othar pomany reporahie segments. Tha ’RAY of the Company altocate the 1esources and gasess (e pevlotmance of (he Company. thes he 1 the

Chief Opecating Decivion Mabes (COOM) The CODM monitors 1w operating cesults of 1he businesy sy Asingle wpment heice no saparste pagment asedy 10 ba
divclored

Information about geagraphical aresy
At \he Campany (y engaged in export sales aivo hence separare Eeogaphical yegment iy diselosed

r Particulary Your Ended Yant Ended
31:Mar-24 JiMar-73
Within India [LEY) 07m
Outsida India 1.67 476
Yot 0.2 5,59

Revenue iy detived from one major Cuslomer whith amounty to 10% or more pf the Com DANyY's revenue ay helow

B8 56 476
167 078

Note - 44 Relstod Party Disclosures

(A)  Holding Company
Hero Motors Umited

A
]

(0)  Key Management Pessonnel (kMP)
Mr Auiit Gupta-Direcior
Mr Abliishek Munjal-Director
Mr Anil Raifo-Director
Mr Nevnj Savena €10
Ms Prema Joalii-CS
M Amandip Kumar. Manapsr

€) Fellow Subsidiary Co's
Hera COU Systems Private Umited (Whaolly-owned Subsidiary of Holding Company)
Hero Motors Thal Limited {Subsidiary of Holding Company)
Hewland Engineering Umited {Subsidiary of Holding Company)
Spur Technologies Private Umited (Wholly-owned Subsidiary of Molding Company)

1) Enterprise over which Key Msnagerial Parsonnel axercise Significant Influence
Hero Cycles Limited
Bhagyoday Investments Private Limited
Firefox Bikes Private Umited
Hero PBG Cycles Private Limited
Munjal Sales Corporation
Hera Cycles Group Private Umited
OMA Living Private Limited
ZF Hero Chassis Systems Private Limited
Spur Technologies Private Umiled
HMC £ Valley Private Limited
Leciro £-Mobility Private Limited
Munjal Kirlu Industiies Private Uimited
Hero Transmission Private Limited




HYM DRIVE SvsTEMS PRIVATE UMITID
NOTES 10 g FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

(0 Yeamactions with relsted parties during the year

8 Purchase of Goods & Rendering of

Sarvices

Hero Motors Limited 1960 1960
Hera Lectra (A Div of Mero Cydler Lta ) 101 1.01
Nero [-Cytles Private Limited oo 3200
b. Sale of Goods R Rendering of Services

Hero Motors Umited Ban 648
Hero EDU Systems P Lt 96.04 96.04
Spur Technologies Private Limited

¢. Charges Paid

Mero Mators Limited 12979 e
Hero EDU Systems Mt 1td. -
Spur Technologies Private Limited 336 33
Hero ECycles Private Limited 1657 16.57
d. Charges Recovered

Mero Motors Limited 1629 1629
Hero LOU Systems Pvi. Lid 019 ox
. Loan Recelved

Hero Motars Limited 646 00 646.00
1. Interest Pald |

Hero Motors Umited ) 1293 1293
§- Salary/Remuneration Pald )

Mr. Neera) Saxena-CFO 17.4 17.24
Ms Prerna JoshiCS 238 218
Mi_Amardip Kumar-Manager ) 6746 6746

Al vty on € Lakh'y uniess wated olfe. wise]

*Transactions are inclusive of GST

Transactions with related parties during the Previous year

Details of transactions

a. Purchase of Goods & Rendering of
Services
Hero Motors Umited o
Hero Lectro (A Div of Hero Cydes td) |
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited
b. Charges Paid
MeroMotorsumited
Hero ECycles Private Limited

¢. Charges Recovered

Hero Motors Limited -

Hero Lectro (A Div. of Mero Cycles Ltd )
Spur Technologies Private Limited

d Loan Given )

Hero Motars Umited

o, Interest Recelved

Hero Motors Limited

(. Salary/Remunerution Paid

Mr Neeraj Saxena-CFO

Ms Prerna Joshi LS

Mi John Claribel-Manager

Holding

36.84

17871

3561

. Key Managemant
Persommel

Fellow Subsidiary

Enterprise over
which Key
Managerial
Personnel exercise
Significant influence

3684

96 496
188 188
17871

123 123
3561

207 207
005 006
Sm(l)_
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(F)  Batances of related parties as the year end 31.03.2024

45

». Trade payable (Current/Non Currant)

As ot 31.03.2024
Hero Motors Limited 3429
Hero Lectro (A Div of Hero Cycles Ltd |
Hero [-Cycles Private Umited
b. Trade Recelvables

As 21 31.03.2024
Hero EDU Systems Pyt Lid ; 2800

Balances of related parties as the year end 31.03.2023

Fellow Subsidiary

Details of transactions
Co's

{A/l mrmaumts in ® (AR 's unieas stated othenvise)

3%
412

Enterprisa over
which Key
Managerial
Personnel exercise
Significant influence

u29
3%
412

28.00

8. Trade payable (Current/Non Current) | - =

As at 31,03.2023 I - —— = : —
Hero Motors Limited ) 1202 ) ) 1202
Hero Lectra (A Div.of Hero Cycles ltd) - R W 2.89 A8
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited ~ sn 51
Spur Technologies Private Limited ) — i 006 0.06
_Asatdioszon
Hero Molors Limited B 092 092
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 053 0.50

accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development 2006,along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay In making payment (Which have been but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprises Development 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years,untill such date, when
the interest dues as above re actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development 2006.




HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al ameunts in X Lokh's uniess stated otherwise)

Note - 46  Financial Risk A : ‘
The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits, employee
liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities 15 to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations The
Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and short-tarm deposits that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also enters into derivative transactions

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes in market prices Market risk
comprises three types of risk: intesest rate risk, currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings

Interest Rate
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest

The Cempany manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. To mitigate interest rate risk, the
Company’s regularly monitor's market movement and its impact on the Company's taken borrowings and accordingly, Company's take action

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In Interest rates on that portion of Ioans and borrowings affected, after the
impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floatng rate
borrowings, as follows

Increase/Decrease  Effect on Profit

Particualrs in basis points before tax
INR Lacs
+50 0.00
31-Mar-24
ar-2 50 | 000
31-Mar-23 150 .
-S0 0.00

The assumed movement In basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing 2
significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

Forelgn Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency).

The company uses Forward Conlracts to hedge its risks associated with fluctuations in foreign currencies and interest rate relating to foreign currency
liabilities, certain firm commitments and some forecasted transactions related to foreign currency trade. The use of Forward Contracts is governed by
Company’s overall strategy. The Company does not use forward Contracts for speculative purposes

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The im pact
on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities - The Company’s exposure to foreign currency
changes for all other currencies is not material.

Effect on profit ' Effect on pre-tax
before tax equity
INR Lakh's |  INR Lakh's
000 000
000 0.00
000
0.00

Change in USD rate

Particulars

31-Mar-24 = =

31-Mar-23
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erwise)]
(All omounts in € Lakh's unless stated otherwi
Credit Risk

The
a financial 105$
Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial Instrument or cuslomc_r conlmc; I(-:ldllr:;;1 :10 Repouts with banks
Company is exposed to credit risk from ils operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and fram its financing activities, Including

and financial Institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial Instruments

Trade Recelvables mer credit
In case of trade recelvables credit risk is due to delayed payments or default in payments The Company considering business w’:::::sc:s:z,v minimal
worthiness takes the 100% deposits In advance from Its trade receivables Therefore, in case of Company credit risk from trade r::: gyt
and to manage minimal risk, Company's management regularly reviews the credit worthiness of its dealers, distributors elc‘; aelial, 3005

€xposure due to credit risk from trade recelvables is lllustrated in note no. 11 for the balances outstanding at March 31, 2024 an.

Financlal Instruments and Cash Deposits ‘ e
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the company by Investing of surplus funds with approved counxer?an:exb:l:’i‘o; :::::s. The company's
are kept with government owned banks leading to very lower risk and that how company is managing Its credit risk for

i ts as [llustrated in
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2024 and March31, 2023 Is the carrying amoun
Note No. 12

Liquidity Risk ffective working
The Company manages its liquidity risk to maintain adequate net working capital by constantly managmg‘ projected cash "°“'; B:v:vn:r;raﬁs or banking
Capital and cash management, the Company mitigates liquidity risk by contracting with financial institutions with respect to ban

facllity agreements for efficient management of funds.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 3 ~— S S bears
Particulars On demand Lisdas, 3 to 12 months 1toSye ¥

Year ended

31-Mar-24 i : —
Borrowings ) 2 - al0
Trade payables B 12.;B:STF . —

li ] _

Other Current financial Liabilities o P s
fe?ended

31-mar-23 B ; : T
Trade payables B 2:::1 ; o
Other Current financial Liabilities ; o

B o 245.56 . 245.5
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(All amountvin T Lakh's uniess stated otherwise)

47 Deferred tax; AR As at

Provided during k
’ Mar-24
Particulars 31-Mar-23 tha year £} |

Deferred tax liability:
5500
Related to Property, Plant & Equipments 16.61 3839 )
55.00
Total deferred tax llabllity (A) 16.61 38.39
Deferred tax assets:
562)
Provision for gratuity, Bonus & Leave Encashment (7.68) Zgg (0 =
Provisian for gratuity, Bonus & Leave Encashment- charged 0
in OC|
On loss (38.99) (49 77) (8!: ;651'
On Section 350 (2.47) 062 (
96.20)
Total deferred tax assots (B) (49.14) (‘;»::J :41‘20
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (A + B) (32.53) (8.67)

The Company affsets tax assets and liabillties If and only if it has a legally enfarceable right to set off current tax a;sels
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabllities relate 1o income taxes levied by the
same tax autharity.




HYM DRIVE SYSTEMS PRIVATC LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are In § lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 48 : Fair value measurements

l Financlal Instruments
a) Financlal Instruments by category

All financial assets and llabilities viz. trade recelvables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, interest receivable, other
feceivables, trade payables, employee related liabllities and borrowings, are measured at amortised cost

b) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the jJudgments and estimates made In determining the fair values of the standalone financial instruments that are (a) recognised
and measured ot fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the standalone financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining falr value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financials liabilities, including their levels of in the fair value

hierarchy:
As at March 31, 2024
As at As at

Particul Level

ertionars i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Trade recelvables Level 3 2791 0.92
Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 34.58 107.33
Other bank balances Level 3 - 502 18
Total Financlal Assets 62.50 610.43
Financlal liabilities valued at amortized cost
Borrowings Level 3 646.00
Trade payables Level 3 38.57 3114
Interest accrued but not due Level 3 1293 -
Employee Benefit Payable Level 3 35.81 27.60
Payable to Related parties Level 3 29.77 17.20
Creditors for capital goods Level 3 50.87 169 62

Total Financial Liabllities 813.95 245.55
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al omaunts 1 € Lokh s unless rtated otherwese)

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to
- safeguard thelr ability to comtinue as a going concern, wo that they can cantinye to provide returms far shateholder's and benelits fof

other stakeholder’s, and
- Maintain an aptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order ta maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount ol dividends paid to shareholders, return
capltal to shareholders, issue new shares orf sell assets to reduce debt

Consistent with athers in the Industry, the Company monitors capltal on the basis of the following gearing ratio
- Net Debt {total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)
- divided by Total ‘Equity” (as shown in the balance sheet)

The Company's strategy IS to maintain a gearing ratio within the range of 2 1. The gearing ratios were as follaws
At March 31, 2024 At March 31,2021

Particulars

Net Debts 646.00 0.00
Total Equity 276135 3075 55
Net Debt to Equity Ratlo 0.23 0.00

50 The company is not required to spend any amount on CSR activities as the company Is outside the preview of section 13%
of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under consideration.

51 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds ar thare premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {"Intermediariey”)
with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwlse, that the intermediary shall lend or invest in party
identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

The Company has not received any fund from any partyls) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company
{“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

52 Additional Disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule 1l
(a) There are no transactions 1o report for Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

{b) There are no Proceedings initited or pending against the company for holding ary benami property under the Benami
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

{c) There are no charges or Satisfaction of charges which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period

(d) The company is not declared a willful defaulter by any bank or Fi's or any other lender.

{e) There are no transactions with any company struck off under section 248 of the Company's Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
the Companies Act, 1956,

{f) No Revaluation of property,Plant and equipment as no such revaluation has taken place during the year




|| Thier are re Lo ar advances the nature of leans granted 1o Promoters, disactors,

KNSFs and othes refated partied

aithes saverally or jointly with any other pessan that are repayabie on dernand or without ppetilying any 18rma or peniod

af repayment

|} The company hes nof taken any Inans during tha year e ary inenceal Instifubon Henoe reguiremants ol auarterly

ipdurny 6f piatements of current aspets o ba filsd with the Banks of Fi's are not appticable.

{1} Dally backup ol records & takien & recorded in india

ifi The Miristry of Corpofite Affairs [MCA] vide it notificathon M, G5R 20GIE) dated March 24, 2021 has Iszued the

"Companins [Audit and Anditors] Amendment Rubes, F021° read with sub-gection

1 of Saction 143 of the Companies AL

2013 [herinafter reforred &5 “the Act”] Imtraducing Rule LLigE As per this Fule; every campany which uses ALCOUNEINgG
snftware for maintzining ity books of Bocount, ghal mnﬂl‘fiu:hlttﬂmﬂntiuﬁﬁwwhmhhﬂl Eeature of Fecording

audit trail of pach and every transaction, creating sn edit log of gach change made i the booxs
date when such changes were made pnd ensuring that the sudd troil cannot be deabled

of sccount along with the

During the yaar. the Company maintained iv*s books of account in SAP 4 Hana accouwnting software where audit trail
feature [edit fog focility) wad not grabiled during the year ended March 31, 3024, The Compary i5 evaluating

implamenmation of audit trail feature in accounting software used for masstaining S

requarsments of Provise to Rule 3(1) of the Comparies (Account] Rules, 2014

Abhishak Munjal
Detecton
Dijh: 05355274

Meera| Sanena
Place: Lisdhiana CFa

Date: 37 [0S\ ey BAN-AONPSTT22]
VOIM. 8409 49L B CUM B loy4y

bogics of accaunt Lo comply with the

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited

Armal upta
Cfirector
Dl 02980732

Prerma Joshl
Company Secrétany
AS2S50
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